
 
MINUTES 

CITY OF NORCO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2820 CLARK AVENUE 
 REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 8, 2008 

 

   

1. CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL: Chair Wright,  Commissioners Harris, Hedges, and Newton 

ABSENT: Vice-Chair Jaffarian 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: Planning Manager King, Senior Planner Robles, Building Official 

Berg, Executive Secretary Dvorak  
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Chair Wright  
 
5. APPEAL NOTICE: Read by staff. 
 
6. HEARING FROM THE AUDIENCE ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA: 

None. 
 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of September 24, 2008 

MOTION: M/S Hedges/Newton to approve the minutes of September 24, 2008 as 
written. 
AYES: Harris, Hedges, Newton and Wright 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Jaffarian       MOTION CARRIED  

 
8. CONTINUED ITEMS: None  
  
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 
 
10. BUSINESS ITEMS:  
 

A. Appeal 2008-02 (Rodriguez): An Appeal of the Planning Division’s Determination 
to Require that All Non-permitted Structures, with the Exception of a Mobile Unit 
and a Storage Structure, be Removed from Property Located at 4281 California 
Avenue before a Building Permit is Issued to Allow Re-Build of a Home on this 
property. Recommendation: Denial (SP Robles) 

 
SP Robles said a last-minute site inspection was performed by Building Official 
Mark Berg and Chief Frye October 7, 2008, changing staff’s recommendation to 
approval.  
 



 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 2 
October 8, 2008 
 
 

Two exhibits were given to the Commission, “A” was a before aerial showing 
massive items on the lot and “B” showing the lot as it is today, very much cleaned 
up. BO Berg said the property has been a code compliance case since 1996. There 
are illegally built structures on the site that will be removed, as will be the two motor 
homes, once the home is built. He said the Certificate of Occupancy will be held 
back until that is done. The applicant had expected to be living in the new house by 
now, but the Building Division is fairly comfortable with the progress being made.  
 
PC Harris asked what staff wanted from the Commission, now that staff changed its 
recommendation.  
 
BO Berg said it was his determination that staff could now recommend approval of 
the appeal because no one was living in the structures and the promise was made 
by the applicant to remove the buildings and motor homes. 
  
PC Newton was concerned about the utilities being released; but staff confirmed 
there is already electricity and the motor homes are hooked up to the existing septic 
tank. The new house will be on sewer. Only the gas service will be held back. 
 
There was discussion on the cost of posting a bond for the removal of the 
structures. PM King said it would be about $500, which the Commission felt was 
satisfactory. He said the applicant has agreed to give the City of Norco a letter that 
he will remove all structures and the motor homes before the City would release any 
utilities. The applicant agreed to the cash bond tonight. 
 
Martin Rodriguez, applicant, used an interpreter to explain his situation. Inspector 
Welch had said because the bad condition of the original house made demolition of 
it necessary. Mr. Rodriguez got a loan but because the City took too long to 
approve his plans, the loan was recalled. He has been working on cleaning up the 
property as was shown in the exhibits and photographs handed out to the 
Commission tonight. 
 
PC Hedges and Chair Wright agreed with PC Newton about bonding to ensure 
everything will be removed as promised. PM King said the Commission could ask 
for that.  
 
BO Berg said the applicant has enough money to start building and will obtain 
another loan. They need to get a legal inspection every six months for the permit to 
continue. There are required inspections that the applicant has to comply with. 

  
MOTION: M/S Newton/Hedges to require a bond of $15,000 for the removal of the 
accessory structures and the two motor homes. 
AYES: Hedges, Newton, Wright 
NOES: Harris       MOTION CARRIED  



 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 3 
October 8, 2008 
 
 

  
PC Harris said this should be handled by staff and that is not the Commission’s 
place to request a bond. 
 
B. Oral Report: Status Update on 1524 Fourth Street. Recommendation: Receive 

and File (SP Robles) 
 
BO Berg said the City has been in discussion with Mr. Cuevas who is changing the 
building from stucco to wood siding for a one-hour fire wall on all four sides. 
Everything has to be done from his property as he cannot get permission to work 
from two out of the three adjacent sites where the building sits on the property lines.   
 
John Rigoli, 2860 Sierra Avenue said the change from stucco to siding was a major 
change. He questioned why there was no block wall built for this site as required in 
Code Section 18.22.24. He asked how the owner would be able to maintain his 
building on the property lines. The owner of this site never contacted any of the 
adjacent property owners but now he wants the City to favor him. Mr. Cuevas wants 
one of the neighbors to use the rear wall of the building as a fence for her horses. 
Mr. Rigoli said stucco walls do not go well with horses. 
 
Barbara Okeefe, 2860 Sierra Avenue also asked how the owner of that building will 
maintain the siding. She said her concerns were the same as she brought up at the 
last meeting, but added the applicant has lied to her. 
 
PC Harris asked why the PC was hearing this.  
 
PM King said the initial request came from Vice-Chair Jaffarian who wanted to know 
why work on the building had stopped. This was before the Commission with a 
“receive and file” recommendation.  
 
PC Harris said this is not within the Commission’s realm; he suggested this be 
turned back to the Planning Division or to the City Attorney. 
 
There was discussion on whether or not a change of materials called for 
Commission review. Staff read the condition that says minor change of material can 
be approved by staff, with major changes needing Commission review. BO Berg 
said this is a major change.  
 
PC Newton said he hoped the neighbors could work with the applicant to help him 
by letting him work on his building through their properties. This is a fire hazard as it 
sits.  
 
PM King clarified that the Commission was saying that Building Division should 
continue to work with the applicant.  



 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 4 
October 8, 2008 
 
 

 
MOTION: Hedges/Wright to receive and file. 
AYES: Hedges, Newton, Wright 
NOES: Harris       MOTION CARRIED 
 
PC Harris did not feel this issue should have been brought to the Planning 
Commission. 
 

11. CITY COUNCIL: Received and filed. 
 
 A. City Council Action Agenda dated October 1, 2008 
 
 B. City Council Minutes dated September 17, 2008 
 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION: None 
 
13. Oral Reports from Representatives on Various Committees/Commissions: 
 

PC Harris said EDAC met on the Housing Element and voted to approve as 
submitted, agreeing with the Commission about deleting Site 7.  

 
PC Newton spoke about the Chevron/manure meeting that was still happening at 
the same time as this meeting; he heard the issue needs a full-blown feasibility 
study.  

 
14. STAFF: None 
 
15. OTHER MATTERS: PC Harris asked about Item 10B ever coming back to the 

Commission; staff said only if conditions of approval required review of proposed 
changes. 

 
16. ADJOURNMENT: 7:50 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Steve King 
Planning Secretary 
 
/sd-70437 


